
 

 

 
 

Notice of a public meeting of  
                               Local Plan Working Group  
 
To: Councillors Ayre (Chair), N Barnes, Carr (Vice-Chair), 

D'Agorne, Derbyshire, Levene, Lisle, Mercer, Orrell, 
Reid, Steward, Warters and Williams 
 

Date: Monday, 5 December 2016 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039) 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare: 
 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Local Plan 
Working Group held on 10 October 2016.  
 

3. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak, regarding an item on the agenda, or 
an issue within the remit of the Working Group, may do so.  The 
deadline for registering is 5.00 pm on Friday 2 December 2016. 



 

 

Filming or Recording Meetings 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed and webcast or audio 
recorded and that includes any registered public speakers, who 
have given their permission. This recording can be played back at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if sound recorded, this will be 
uploaded to the Council’s website following the meeting.  
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting should 
contact the Democracy Officer (contact details are at the foot of this 
agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a manner 
both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all those present.  
It can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_
webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_2016080
9.pdf 
 

4. City of York Local Plan - Update on Preferred Sites 
Consultation and Next Steps  (Pages 7 - 20) 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the Local Plan 
following the Preferred Sites consultation July – September 2016. It 
highlights other factors that have arisen since the consultation and 
sets out next steps for the consideration by Members.  
 

5. EPetition: Ownership of Property and Land in York Plans  
(Pages 21 - 26) 
 

The purpose of this report is to ask Members to acknowledge the 
receipt of an ePetition entitled ‘Ownership of Property and Land in 
York Plans’, which was submitted by lead petitioner, Geoff Beacon 
on 10 July 2016 (this was subject to a further wording amendment 
by the petitioner), and to consider how it should be best dealt with 
by the Council. 
 

6. Urgent Business   
 

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf


 

 

Democracy Officer: 
  
Name: Laura Clark  
 
Contact Details:  

 Telephone – (01904) 554538 

 E-mail – Laura.Clark@york.gov.uk 
  

 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 
Contact details are set out above. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Laura.Clark@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Local Plan Working Group 

Date 10 October 2016 

Present Councillors Ayre (Chair), N Barnes, Carr 
(Vice-Chair), D'Agorne, Derbyshire, Lisle, 
Mercer, Orrell, Reid, Steward, Williams and 
Looker (Substitute for Councillor Levene) 

Apologies Councillors Levene and Warters 

 

5. Declarations of Interest  
 
Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or 
any disclosable pecuniary interests which they might have in 
respect of business on the agenda.   
 
Councillor Williams declared a personal non-pecuniary interest 
as he is employed by Yorkshire Water. Although not directly 
involved in fracking they could potentially be part of the supply-
chain.  
 
Councillor Steward declared a personal interest, as he had once 
owned shares in Sirius Minerals and may hold them again in the 
future.  
 
Councillor Mercer declared a personal interest as she currently 
holds shares in Sirius Minerals.  
 
Councillor Reid declared a previously registered pecuniary 
interest, in that she was the City of York appointee to YorWaste.  
 
 

6. Minutes  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 

2016 be approved as a correct record and then 
signed by the Chair. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



7. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been three registrations to speak 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on the 
following item.  
 
4. City of York, North Yorkshire and North York Moors National 
Park Minerals and Waste Joint Plan – Publication Draft  
 
Mr Kit Bennett spoke on behalf of ‘Frack Free York’. He stated 
that improvements had been made to the plan, including the 
provision of buffer zones, exemption of designated sites from 
surface oil and gas development and increased detail on the 
issue of waste water. He suggested that the following points be 
considered:  
 

 Strengthening buffer zone provision  by increasing the 
size of the zone, making them apply regardless of 24 hour 
working, looking at a wider range of designated sites and 
applying stricter controls to well pad density.  

 Taking into account Climate Change in planning 
applications for oil and gas development.  

 Application of the precautionary principle, as required by 
the Water Framework Directive.  

 

Mr Peter Rollings, Chairman of the Rufforth with Knapton 
Neighbourhood Plan Group, spoke on the proposals relating to 
Harewood Whin Waste Recovery Site. He stated that the 
Neighbourhood Plan Group welcomed the proposals as 
currently laid out in the plan and the continued designation of 
the area as green belt land. They hoped that this, along with the 
planned boundary coinciding with the current operational site 
boundary, would be enshrined in the Local Plan.  
 
Councillor Kramm reiterated that he was not in support of any 
fracking taking place in North Yorkshire. He then raised the 
following points:  
 

 Whilst the addition of buffer zones was clear progress, 
there should be further discussion around the size of 
these zones.  

 In respect of Policy M17 (Other spatial and locational 
criteria applying to hydrocarbon development) (Agenda 
page 120, 4ii) he felt the word ‘unless’ should be deleted 
entirely, as there should never be a case to have a buffer 

Page 2



zone of less than 400m and that this would weaken the 
policy.  

  A waste water treatment plan should be in place before 
consideration of planning applications.  

 
 

8. City of York, North Yorkshire and North York Moors 
National Park Minerals and Waste Joint Plan - Publication 
Draft  
 
Members were asked to consider a publication draft of the City 
of York, North Yorkshire and North York Moors National Park 
Minerals and Waste Joint Plan. Officers presented the report to 
Members for discussion and to allow them to make 
recommendations that would be considered by Executive at a 
meeting on 13 October 2016.  
 
In response to issues raised by public speakers, Officers 
clarified: 
 

 The plan was now at publication stage and if agreed at 
Executive this document would then go out for public 
consultation.  

 In respect of climate change, policy D11 (Sustainable 
design, construction and operation of development) could 
perhaps be strengthened and climate change should be 
considered in planning applications.  

 In regard to the ambiguity around ‘sensitive receptors’, the 
exact meaning would be clarified at Executive.  

 With reference to the size of Buffer Zones, 400m was a 
general figure from the General Permitted Development 
Order (GPDO) but this could potentially be increased to 
500m.  

 The protection list in policy M17 (Other spatial and 
locational criteria applying to hydrocarbon development) 
currently covered areas considered the most valuable, 
however there was flexibility and smaller nature sites 
could be protected with buffer zones, although on a case 
by case basis.  

 
During discussion Members raised the following issues: 
 

 How would fracked water be disposed of and would on-
site treatment be a possibility, thereby reducing water 
consumption and transport needs (Policy M17, 1iii).  

Page 3



 A Member suggested deleting ‘Where practicable...’.It was 
felt that Brownfield sites should always be first preference 
and adequate justification would have to be provided for 
other sites (M17, 2v). 

 Could a clearer definition of ‘sensitive receptors’ be 
included in the plan. Members also suggested removing 
the 24 hour limit as some ‘sensitive receptors’ such as 
schools would be affected by daytime operations (M17, 
4ii).  

 In respect of separation distance, could Officers remove 
the wording ‘unless...’ (M17, 4ii). 

 Members suggested the inclusion of Sites of Special 
Scientific Interest (SSSIs) on the protection list, in addition 
to National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONBs) (M16, dii).   

 Some Members felt the policy needed to be clearer with 
regard to which criteria apply to surface development and 
sub-surface development (M16).   

 Would it be possible to set out in the policy how numbers 
of wells/well density could be limited to avoid cumulative 
impact (M17, 2ii)?  
 

Members then considered the following options: 
 

1. Members recommend to Executive that the Minerals and 
Waste Joint Plan Publication documents attached at 
Annexes A-J be approved for the purpose of public 
consultation; 

2. Members recommend to Executive that the Minerals and 
Waste Joint Plan Publication documents attached at 
Annexes A-J be approved subject to amendments agreed 
at this meeting; 

3. Members recommend to Executive that the Minerals and 
Waste Joint Plan Publication documents be rejected and 
request that further work is undertaken. 

 
Resolved:    

 
i. That Officers respond to comments made at the 

meeting and circulate their response to Executive 
on Thursday 13 October 2016.  
 

ii. That Option 1 be recommended to Executive:  
 

Page 4



o That the draft Minerals and Waste Joint Plan for 
York, North Yorkshire and North York Moors 
National Park (Annex A) be approved for the 
purposes of publication in accordance with the 
requirements of Regulation 19 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012. 

 
o That the Executive Member for Transport and 

Planning be authorised to make non-substantive 
editorial changes to the main document (Annex 
A) and other supporting documents (Annexes B 
to I) proposed to be published alongside the Plan 
prior to publication.  

 
o That the Executive Member for Transport and 

Planning be authorised to make changes to the 
main document (Annex A) and other supporting 
documents (Annexes B to I) arising from the 
equivalent Executive meetings at North Yorkshire 
County Council and North York Moors National 
Park Authority provided that they are non-
substantive in terms of their impact on the City of 
York area. 

 
Reason:      
 

I. So that the three authorities can make changes 
specific to their authority areas where they will 
not impact on the other Joint areas. 

 
II. So that a National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF) compliant Joint Waste and Minerals Plan 
can be progressed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor N Ayre, Chair 
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 5.15 pm]. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

 

  
 

   

 
 
Local Plan Working Group 
 

 
5 December 2016 

 

Report of the Assistant Director of Planning and Public Protection  
 

City of York Local Plan – Update on Preferred Sites Consultation 
and Next Steps 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the Local Plan 
following the Preferred Sites consultation July – September 2016. It 
highlights other factors that have arisen since the consultation and sets 
out next steps for the consideration by Members.  
 
Background 
 

2. Following approval at Executive on 30 June 2016 the Preferred Sites 
Consultation 2016 took place for a period of eight weeks from Monday 
18 July 2016 to Monday 12 September 2016. The headline issues 
arising from this consultation are detailed below. Responses received 
will be made available to coincide with the publication of this report. In 
addition two further factors have arisen that require consideration. 

 
3. First, on 12 July 2016 the Department of Communities and Local 

Government (CLG) released the Sub National Household Projections 
(SNHP) which update the May 2016 release of the Sub National 
Population Projections (SNPP). This release indicates a higher 
demographic starting point for York. 

 
4. Secondly, the Ministry of Defence (MOD) announced on 7 November 

that they would be disposing of a number of military sites across the 
country as part of their Strategy – A Better Defence Estate (MOD, 7 
November 2016). 

 
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



 

Local Plan Preferred Sites Consultation 
 

5. The Local Plan Preferred Sites consultation was undertaken in 
accordance with the Council‟s adopted Statement of Community 
Involvement (2007).The consultation strategy was produced working 
alongside colleagues in the Council‟s Communications Team and 
Neighbourhood Management Team. The consultation included: 

 

 a press release to advertise consultation and how to respond 
issued 15 July along with key media interviews including Radio 
York, Minster FM and York Press; 

 all documents and response forms made available online at 
www.york.gov.uk/localplan and on the main City of York 
website consultation finder; 

 hard copies of all the consultation documents, exhibition boards 
and response forms were placed in West Offices Reception; 

 hard copies of all the consultation documents and response 
forms were placed in Council libraries for the duration of the 
consultation; 

 city wide distribution via Our Local Link of an „Our City Special‟ 
with area based maps and free post response form delivered to 
every household; 

 email or letter to all contacts registered on Local Plan database 
(circa 11,500) including members of the public, statutory 
consultees, specific bodies including parish councils and 
planning agents, developers and landowners; 

 staffed drop-in sessions/public exhibitions at venues  across 
the City; 

 exhibition Boards and consultation documents including 
response forums available at ward committee meetings; 

 meetings with all statutory consultees1 and neighbouring 
authorities; 

 presentation and question and answer session with York 
branch of the Yorkshire Local Council Association (attended by 
Parish Councils), York Property Forum/Chamber of Commerce 
and the Environment Forum; and 

 targeted social media campaign via Facebook and Twitter 
running for the duration of the consultation. 

 

 

                                                 
1
 Statutory consultees are Historic England (HE), Environment Agency (EA), Natural England (NE) and 

Highways England (HEng). 

Page 8

http://www.york.gov.uk/localplan


 

6. The Council received 2,309 responses from members of the public, 
interest groups and organisations and developers and landowners. In 
conjunction with this report all representations received will be published 
online via the Council‟s website, will be accessible online in local 
libraries and be available both electronically and in hard copy at West 
Offices reception. Those representations received from members of the 
public will have personal information redacted to comply with the Data 
Protection Act 1998.  The representations raised a range of issues some 
of which are complex in nature. These are provided in summary below: 
 

 support for the reduction in the amount of Greenfield land allocated 
since previous Publication Draft Local Plan; 

 support for both the increase in brownfield land and the phasing of 
brownfield land before Greenfield land;  

 support for the balance between meeting future housing need and 
protecting the historic character and setting of York; 

 concern, particularly from the  public, about the impact on the 
character or infrastructure of a particular area or specific site; 

 criticisms of the level of growth for both housing and employment 
with developers and landowners in particular stating that the 
figures should be higher linked to their view of market signals in 
York; 

 developers and landowners expressed a view that any adopted 
Green Belt should last longer than twenty years; 

 developers and landowners in some cases criticised phasing and 
delivery rates suggesting they are overly ambitious; the overall 
levels of development flexibility within the plan and the reliance on 
windfalls; 

 some respondents highlighted lack of certainty and evidence to 
support the allocation of York Central; 

 potential issues regarding the 5 year housing supply were 
highlighted particularly regarding the lack of smaller Greenfield 
sites included in the Plan; 

 it was also suggested by developers and landowners that there is 
an over reliance on a few large sites including ST15 (Land West of 
Elvington Lane), ST5 (York Central) and ST14 (Land West of 
Wigginton Road); 

 developers of Strategic Sites suggesting boundary revisions to the 
sites (although not seeking return to the 2014 position); and  

 Significant technical evidence submitted in support of the „removed 
sites‟ & new sites submitted. 
  

Page 9



 

7. Officers are undertaking work to consider and evaluate the points raised. 
To date all responses have been read, logged and all personal 
information has been redacted. All the representations received will be 
uploaded to the Council‟s website in order that they can be viewed 
electronically by members of the public and other interested parties. The 
representations will be split between representations received from 
members of the public (which will be redacted to remove personal 
information) and those received from statutory bodies and organisations, 
including developers and landowners, which will be made available in 
full. 

 
8. Further work is currently underway to analyse and summarise all the 

responses received and make clear recommendations for Members. 
This includes large volumes of technical evidence submitted by 
developers/landowners relating to ecological appraisal, visual and 
landscape appraisal, archaeological assessment, transport assessments 
and flooding and drainage assessments. This information relates not 
only those sites included in the Preferred Sites Consultation but also to 
those sites not included in the Preferred Sites Consultation but that have 
been previously considered as part of the emerging Local Plan process 
to date and also entirely new sites submitted for the first time through the 
Preferred Sites Consultation.  

 
9. All of this technical information needs to be analysed in full and 

discussed with relevant technical officers across the Council as part of 
the technical officer group set up to support the local plan site selection 
process to date. This group comprises Council officers across various 
specialisms including ecology, archaeology, landscape and transport. 
The Group has already met several times to start to assess and discuss 
the submissions received including suggested boundary changes to 
sites. 

 
10. In addition all the revised boundary submissions and new sites 

submitted need to be mapped on GIS and run through the site selection 
methodology in order to assess whether the sites represent „reasonable 
alternatives‟ that need to be considered in further detail including as part 
of the Sustainability Appraisal/Strategic Environmental Assessment 
(SA/SEA). Any new sites which meet the Site Selection Criteria will then 
need to be assessed by the technical officer group to determine whether 
they should be included as potential allocations within the emerging 
Local Plan. 

 

Page 10



 

11. Following discussions as part of the technical officer group officers will 
then need to feed back to developers and landowners and request any 
additional technical evidence required. 

 

12. The work described above will lead to recommendations by Officers on 
the next stage of the development of the Local Plan. However, before 
this stage can be reached it is important to consider the two further 
substantive issues raised in this report. These are highlighted below. 
 

DCLG Sub National Household Projections 
 

13. As part of the Preferred Sites Consultation 2016 the Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment (SHMA) and the SHMA Addendum produced for the 
Council by consultants GL Hearn were released as supporting 
documents. This work updated the Objective Assessment of Housing 
Need (OAN) previously undertaken to support the emerging Local Plan. 
The OAN in the SHMA of 841 dwellings per annum uses the 2014 based 
Sub National Population Projections (SNPP) as the demographic 
starting point which was released by the Office for National Statistics on 
25 May 2016.  
 

14. On the 12 July 2016 the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) released the Sub National Household Projections 
(SNHP) which update the previous May release. In addition over ten 
alternative OAN reports produced by consultants on behalf of 
landowners/developers have been submitted as part of the Preferred 
Sites Consultation. 
 

15. It is important that both the CLG update and the alternative OAN are 
considered in full. This requires further technical analysis and GL Hearn 
have been commissioned to update the SHMA and to analyse the 
specific relevant representations that have been received through the 
Preferred Sites Consultation. This work is underway and will be reported 
back to Members. 

 
Ministry of Defence (MOD) 
 

16. The Ministry of Defence (MOD) announced on 7  November that they 
would be disposing of a number of military sites across the country as 
part of their Strategy – A Better Defence Estate (MOD, 7 November 
2016).  Previous dialogue with the MOD in relation to their land interests 
in York has been inconclusive about potential asset disposal; effectively 
raising the potential of sites for redevelopment or the intensification for 

Page 11



 

military use. This was reflected in the Defence Infrastructure 
Organisations (DIO) response to the Preferred Sites Consultation. 

 
17. The announcement made on 7 November by the MOD effectively 

confirms the disposal of the three York sites: 
 

 Imphal Barracks (estimated date of disposal 2031);  

 Queen Elizabeth Barracks (estimated date of disposal 2021); and 

 Towthorpe Lines (estimated date of disposal 2021). 

18. Subsequent to the announcement Officers have met with the MOD to 
further understand the position. Based on this meeting and on the 
response received through the Preferred Sites Consultation officers 
believe that the MOD preference would be for re-development of the 
sites for residential uses with the MOD indicating that the potential 
residential capacity across all three sites could be around 1695 
dwellings. Further dialogue with the MOD and other key stakeholders 
will be required along with technical work to assess the suitability and 
deliverability of the sites. 
  

19. In addition to the issue of the loss of employment land there are a 
number of other constraints that would need careful consideration as 
part of the Local Plan process. Both Queen Elizabeth Barracks and 
Towthorpe Lines are washed over draft Green Belt and are also 
adjacent to Strensall Common a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 
and a Special Area of Conservation (SAC). In addition Imphal Barracks 
includes draft Green Belt, Grade II listed buildings, is partly within a 
conservation area and is also adjacent to Walmgate Stray. There are 
also likely to be important issues of detail such as transport/access, 
archaeology etc. The technical work necessary will include: 
 

 detailed site assessments using internal expertise relating to 
landscape, ecology, archaeology, heritage, design, flood risk and 
transport; 

 SEA / SA (including Habitat Regs and Appropriate Assessment); 
and 

 Viability & Deliverability Work. 

20. In addition if the sites represent reasonable alternatives they will need to 
be considered as part of the Local Plan process. Any new site that 

Page 12



 

represents a „reasonable alternative‟ should be subject to public 
consultation if being considered for allocation in the Publication Draft 
Local Plan. Not doing so would constitute a significant level of risk both 
in terms of the Local Plan Examination and legal challenge. 
 

Next Steps 

 

21. Officers will undertake the necessary work to evaluate whether the MOD 
sites and other new sites represent reasonable alternatives. This work 
will be considered in conjunction with the analysis of all consultation 
responses and the update to the SHMA. This will allow the development 
of a draft portfolio of sites. If this includes new sites that haven‟t been 
previously publicised for comments additional consultation will be 
required before progressing to the Publication Stage. The potential 
changes to the LDS will be the subject of a future report to Members 
once the initial work has been carried out.  

 
22. It is anticipated that the additional work described including any potential 

consultation will extend the Local Plan Timetable by around six months 
and would require a reconsideration of some of the key milestones. 
In addition following the development of a draft portfolio of sites and prior 
to the Publication Stage the work highlighted below will need to 
completed and reported to Members: 
 

 completion of the city wide transport model; 

 viability and deliverability assessment of the Local Plan; 

 the Infrastructure Delivery Plan;  

 the Sustainability Appraisal/Strategic Environmental Assessment, 
Heritage Impact Assessment and Habitat Regulation Assessment; 
and 

 update the policies in the halted Publication Draft Local Plan to 
take account of national policy changes and local evidence base 
updates. 
 

Consultation 

23. If Members approve the recommendations at paragraph 34 to this report 
further consultation is likely to be necessary. Consultation will be carried 
out in conformity with the Councils adopted Statement of Community 
Involvement. Comments received as part of the consultation will then be 
considered by officers and reported to Members.  
 

 

Page 13



 

Options 

24. Officers request that Members consider the following options: 
 
Option 1: That the LPWG request that the Executive approve the 
recommendations set out below. 
 
Option 2: That the LPWG request that the Executive instruct Officers to 
undertake additional work not highlighted within this report.  

 

Analysis 

25. National guidance currently indicates that for a plan to be „sound‟ it must 
be „justified‟. This means a plan must be founded on a robust and 
credible evidence base. It also highlights the importance of undertaking 
and reflecting on public consultation and indicates that a plan must be 
„effective‟, that is to say, „deliverable‟ and „flexible‟. It is therefore 
important that all sites that are reasonable alternatives are fully 
considered and subject to consultation. That the OAN is up to date and 
robust and all consultation responses properly analysed.  

 
26.  Failure to undertake the steps outlined in paragraph 28 would create a 

significant level of risk to the „soundness‟ of the plan at Examination and 
increase the risk of legal challenge. On this basis Option 1 is 
recommended. 
 
 
Council Plan 
 

27. The option outlined above accords with the following priorities from the 
Council Plan:  

 

 A prosperous city for all  

 A Council That Listens To Residents. 
 

 

Implications 
 

28. The following implications have been assessed. 
 

 Financial (1) – The work on the Local Plan is funded from specific 
budgets set aside for that purpose. Over the last four years, 

Page 14



 

significant sums have been expended on achieving a robust 
evidence base, carrying out consultations, sustainability and other 
appraisals, policy development and financial analyses.  Whilst this 
work remains of great value it is important that progress is made to 
ensure that unnecessary additional costs do not occur. Further cost 
will have to be factored into future year‟s budget allocations. 
 

 Financial (2) –The report includes a recommendation to Officers to 
produce a further detailed report highlighting implications to the Local 
Development Scheme following the initial assessments of the work 
highlighted. It also indicates that there could be a six month delay to 
the programme. This extension would require maintaining existing 
staffing levels for 17/18 and 18/19 and approximately £85k of 
additional funding to cover consultation and technical work. The 
costs in 2016/17 can be contained within the current Local Plan 
budget however the impact of the additional costs of finalising the 
plan will need to be considered as part of the 2017/18 budget 
process. 
 

 Financial (3) - Managing the planning process in the absence of a 
Plan will lead to significant costs to the council in managing appeals 
and examinations. In addition it may lead to the reduction of funding 
from government such as New Homes Bonus. 
 

 Human Resources (HR) – The production of a Local Plan and 
associated evidence base requires the continued implementation of a 
comprehensive work programme that will predominantly, although 
not exclusively, need to be resourced within CES. 
 

 Community Impact Assessment - A Community Impact 
Assessment (CIA) has been carried out as the plan has developed; 
including at this stage and is attached. This will be undertaken again 
at the next stage of production. 

 

 Legal – The procedures which the Council is required to follow when 
producing a Local Plan derive from the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) and the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2012.  
 

29. The legislation states that a local planning authority must only submit a 
plan for examination which it considers to be sound. This is defined by 
the National Planning Policy Framework as being: 

Page 15



 

 

 Positively Prepared: based on a strategy which seeks to 
meet objectively assessed development and infrastructure 
requirements; 

 Justified: the most appropriate strategy, when considered 
against the reasonable alternatives, based on proportionate 
evidence; 

 Effective: deliverable over its period and based on effective 
joint working on cross-boundary strategic priorities; and 

 Consistent with national policy: enable the delivery of 
sustainable development in accordance with the policies in 
the Framework. 

 

30. In order for the draft Local Plan to pass the tests of soundness, in 
particular the „justified‟ and „effective‟ tests, it is necessary for it to be 
based on an adequate, up to date and relevant evidence base. 

 
31. The Council also has a legal duty to comply with the Statement of 

Community Involvement in preparing the Plan (S19 (3) 2004 Act).   
 
32. The Council also has a legal “Duty to Co-operate” in preparing the Plan. 

(S33A 2004 Act). In due course Council will be asked to approve the 
publication draft Local Plan which will be subject to examination by a 
member of the Planning Inspectorate before being finally adopted. If the 
draft Local Plan is not prepared in accordance with legal requirements, 
fully justified and supported by evidence, the draft Local Plan is likely to 
be found unsound at examination and would not be able to proceed to 
adoption. 

   

 Crime and Disorder – The Plan addresses where applicable.  

 Information Technology (IT) – The Plan promotes where 
applicable. 

 Property – The Plan includes land within Council ownership. 

 Other – None 
 

Risk Management 
 

33. In compliance with the Council‟s risk management strategy, the main 
risks in producing a Local Plan for the City of York are as follows: 

 

 The need to steer, promote or restrict development across its 
administrative area; 

Page 16



 

 The potential damage to the Council‟s image and reputation if a 
development plan is not adopted in an appropriate timeframe; 

 Risks arising from failure to comply with the laws and regulations 
relating to Planning and the SA and Strategic Environmental 
Assessment processes and not exercising local control of 
developments, increased potential to lose appeals on sites which 
may not be the Council‟s preferred development options;  

 Financial risk associated with the Council‟s ability to utilize planning 
gain and deliver strategic infrastructure; 

 Failure to progress a plan could lead to direct interventions by 
Government into the City‟s Local Plan making; and 

 The Government has stated its intention to remove the New Homes 
Bonus in the case of an authority that has not submitted its Local 
Plan by early 2017. 
 

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risks associated with 
this report have been assessed as requiring frequent monitoring. 

 
 Recommendations 
 
34. In accordance with Option One, that the LPWG request that the  

Executive: 

(i) Note progress on the production of a sound Local Plan following the 
Preferred Sites Consultation, and the additional issues arising post 
consultation that require further consideration. 

Reason: To produce an NPPF compliant Local Plan. 

(ii) Instruct Officers to produce a further report on housing need 
following the DCLG release of the Sub National Household 
Projections (SNHP) and the consideration of the alternative 
objective assessment of housing needs submitted through the 
Preferred Sites Consultation. 

Reason: To produce an NPPF compliant Local Plan. 

(iii) Instruct Officers to produce a report highlighting the implications of 
the disposal of MOD land for the supply of housing land within the 
Local Plan. 

Reason: To produce an NPPF compliant Local Plan. 

Page 17



 

(iv) Request from Officers a further detailed report highlighting 
implications to the Local Development Scheme, including any 
budget implications. 

Reason: To produce an NPPF compliant Local Plan. 

(v) Note the impact of the additional costs that will arise and to the 
requirement to consider as part of the future years budget process.  

Reason: To ensure the costs of developing the Local Plan are clearly 
budgeted. 

 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Martin Grainger  
Head of Strategic Planning 
Tel: 551317  
 
Rachel Macefield 
Forward Planning Team 
Manager 
Tel 551356 
 

 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director Planning and Public 
Protection 

Tel: 551300 

 
Executive Member Responsible for 
the Report: 
Cllrs D Carr & K Aspden 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 24.11.16 

    
 
Specialist Implications Officer(s): 
 
Patrick Looker, Finance Manager 
Alison Hartley, Senior Solicitor, Planning 
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all  All 

 

For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
 

Page 18



 

Background Papers: None 
 
Glossary of Abbreviations  
 
DCLG – Department for Communities & Local Government  
LPWG – Local Plan Working Group 
MOD – Ministry of Defence  
NPPF – National Planning Policy Framework 
NPPG – National Planning Practice Guidance 
OAHN – Objective Assessment of Housing Need 
ONS – Office for National Statistics 
SA/SEA - Sustainability Appraisal/Strategic Environmental Assessment 
SHLAA – Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
SHMA – Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
SNHP - Sub National Household Projections 
SNNP - Sub National Population Projections 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
 
Local Plan Working Group 
 

 
5 December 2016 

Report of the Assistant Director for Planning and Public 
Protection. 
 

 
E Petition: Ownership of Property and Land in York Plans 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to ask Members to acknowledge the receipt 
of an ePetition entitled ‘Ownership of Property and Land in York Plans’, 
which was submitted by lead petitioner Geoff Beacon on 10July 2016 
(this was subject to a further wording amendment by the petitioner), and 
to consider how it should be best dealt with by the Council. 
 
Background 
 

2. The ePetition was submitted to the Council on 10 July 2016 (but was 
subsequently subject to a wording amendment by the petitioner) and ran 
from 8 August 2016 until 29 September 2016. The amended petition 
stated: 
 
“We the undersigned petition the Council to do the following: 
 
When proposals for the development of land and/or property are made 
in York, we petition the Council to publish the identities of the owners 
and beneficial owners when the enhanced value given by the grant of 
planning permission is estimated to exceed one million pounds. For such 
proposals, estimates of the value of the granted planning permission 
should be published and the dates at which the ownership and beneficial 
ownership commenced or when options were purchased.” 
 

3.  A full copy of the ePetition and details of signatories are shown in Annex 
A to this Report. 
 

Page 21 Agenda Item 5



 

4. Given that the ePetition has 14 signatories on it, it has been entered on 
 the Council’s Petition Register, to be dealt with through the relevant 
 process. 
 
5. The ePetition is aimed at publishing the identities of owners and 

beneficial owners of land when the estimated value exceeds one million 
pounds through the granting of planning permission, or when options 
were purchased on the land in question.  

 
Analysis 

 
6. The Local Plan process relates more to the submission of land for 

consideration as potential development sites rather than the granting of 
planning permission, which would be given at a later date, following 
consideration by officers, public consultation and public examination. 
Additionally, due to phasing of allocations, the granting of planning 
permission in some cases may not be until later in the Local Plan 
timeframe.  

 
7. Consequently, it is considered that it would be best addressed and 

considered through the Executive Member for Transport and Planning, 
as it is closely related to the granting of planning permission, rather than 
directly with the Local Plan process.  

 
Next Steps 

 
8. Officers therefore consider that the ePetition should be referred to the 

Executive Member for Transport and Planning for consideration and 
action at a future Decision Session. 
 

9. The outcome of the consideration of the petition will be will be reported 
to the Corporate and Scrutiny Management Committee (CSMC). 

 
Council Plan 
 

10. The course of action outlined above accords with the following priority 
from the Council Plan:  

 
A Council That Listens To Residents – the report recommends that 
Members consider that the ePetition is passed on to the Executive 
Member for Transport and Planning to be considered at a future 
Decision Session, which demonstrates an example of listening to 
residents. 

Page 22



 

Implications 
 

11. The following implications have been assessed. 
 

 Financial – None; 

 Human Resources - None; 

 Community Impact Assessment – None; 

 Legal – It is considered that legal advice should be sought on the 
issue of making public the names of landowners / private individuals 
as this may be considered as confidential information.  
 

Risk Management 
 

12. In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, it is 
considered that there is a risk associated with the potential making 
public the names of landowners / private individuals as this may be 
considered as confidential information.  
 

 Recommendations 
 
13. It is recommended that the LPWG: 

 (i) notes the content of the ePetition and refers it to the 
 Executive Member for Transport and Planning to be considered at 
 a future Decision Session. 

 Reason: So that the ePetition is considered, and actioned as 
 appropriate, due to the nature of its content. 

 
 

  

Page 23



 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Martin Grainger  
Head of Strategic Planning 
Tel: (01904) 551317  
 
John Roberts 
Assistant Development 
Officer (Forward Planning). 
Tel: (01904) 551464 

 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director for Planning and 
Public Protection 
Tel: (01904) 551300 
 
 
 
Executive Member Responsible for 
the Report: 
Cllr I Gillies 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 24/11/16 

    
 
Specialist Implications Officer(s): 
 
Sandra Branigan, Senior Solicitor, Planning 
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all  All 

 

For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Background Papers: 
Brief Guide to dealing with Petitions.  
 
Glossary of Abbreviations  
None 
 
Annex A:   
ePetition entitled ‘Ownership of Property and Land in York Plans’ 
  

Page 24



 

Annex A:  
 

EPetition 
 
Title: Ownership of Property and Land in York Plans 

Statement:   

We the undersigned petition the council to do the following: 

When proposals for the development of land and/or property are made 
in York, we petition the council to publish the identities of the owners and 
beneficial owners when the enhanced value given by the grant of 
planning permission is estimated to exceed one million pounds. For such 
proposals, estimates of the value of the granted planning permission 
should be published and the dates at which the ownership and beneficial 
ownership commenced or when options were purchased.  

Justification:   

See York’s great £1 billion giveaway, 
http://www.yorkmix.com/news/opinion/yorks-great-1-billion-giveaway/ 
and 
Work in progress. A plan for York, http://www.brusselsblog.co.uk/work-
in-progress-a-plan-for-york/ 

Start Date: 8 Aug 2016  End Date: 29 Sept 2016 
 
Total: 14 Signatories  
 
ePetition Signatory     Date Signed 

Geoff Beacon 08/08/2016 

Dennis Edwards 09/08/2016 

John Craven 13/08/2016 

Catherine Atkinson 16/08/2016 

Richard Bridge 18/08/2016 

Page 25

http://www.yorkmix.com/news/opinion/yorks-great-1-billion-giveaway/
http://www.brusselsblog.co.uk/work-in-progress-a-plan-for-york/
http://www.brusselsblog.co.uk/work-in-progress-a-plan-for-york/


 

Gerard Hodgson 20/08/2016 

Tony Jawando 22/08/2016 

Al Hamilton 22/08/2016 

Jake Stewart 01/09/2016 

David Emsley 02/09/2016 

Monika Szenkowska 03/09/2016 

Rosie Semlyen 03/09/2016 

Oskar Hall 03/09/2016 

David Smith 07/09/2016 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 City of York Local Plan - Update on Preferred Sites Consultation and Next Steps
	5 EPetition: Ownership of Property and Land in York Plans

